
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES of December 10, 2013 
 
C. COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Chair 
2. Staff  

a. Centennial Celebration completed (Time Capsule placed December 19, 
2013). Public art placement at Tualatin Commons Park in February 2014 

3. Public 
 
D. OLD BUSINESS 
 1. 2013 TPARK Annual Report 

The Tualatin Park Advisory Committee will review and approve the Annual 
Report. They will consider a motion for Council to receive the report at their 
February 10, 2014 meeting. Chairman will present Annual Report to Council. 

 
E. NEW BUSINESS  

1. None 
 
F. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

1.  Tualatin Heritage Center Annual Report (March 10) 
2. Park and Recreation Master Plan 

 
G. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 
H. ADJOURNMENT 

MEETING NOTICE 
 

TUALATIN PARK ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
January 14, 2014 - 6:00 PM 
Tualatin Council Chambers 

18880 SW Martinazzi Avenue 
 



TPARK Minutes December 10, 2013 
 

 
 
 

 
DRAFT 

 
TUALATIN PARK ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
December 10, 2013 

 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Kay Dix, Stephen Ricker, Connie Ledbetter, Bruce 

Andrus-Hughes, Dana Paulino 
 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Dennis Wells, Valerie Pratt 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Carl Switzer, Parks and Recreation Manager 
    
PUBLIC PRESENT: None 

 
OTHER:  None 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER  

Meeting called to order at 6:06 p.m.. 
 

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
The November 12, 2013 minutes were unanimously approved. 

 
C.  COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Public – None 
 
2. Chairperson – None 
 
3. Staff – Staff presented a recap of the Starry Nights and Holiday Lights event on 

December 6, 2013 and the Centennial Time Capsule burial on December 19, 
2013. Committee members were also encouraged to fill out the on-line Tualatin 
Tomorrow survey. 

 
D. OLD BUSINESS 
 1. None 

 
E. NEW BUSINESS 

1.  2014 Annual Tualatin Park Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule Approval 
 The Committee approved their 2014 meeting schedule. Meetings remain on the 

second Tuesday of every month at 6:00 p.m., typically held in Council Chambers. 
 
 
 

 



TPARK Minutes December 10, 2013 – Page 2 of 2 

2. 2013 Annual Tualatin Park Advisory Committee Annual Report 
    The Committee reviewed the first draft of their 2013 Annual Report. There was 

discussion about the recommendations and staff will incorporate those into the 
final draft. TPARK will vote to approve their Annual Report at their January 
meeting, and recommend that council accept their report. The Chairman will be 
asked to present the Annual Report to Council at their February 10, 2014 
meeting. 

 
3. Tree City USA Application 
 The Committee reviewed the Tree City USA program and the application 

requirements.  
 

F. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
1. TPARK Annual Report 
2.  Park and Recreation Master Plan  

 
     

G. COMMUNICATION FROM TPARK MEMBERS (All) 
Members of the Committee expressed an interest in having Tom Steiger, Parks 
Maintenance Manager, present to them information about Tualatin’s Parks 
Maintenance program. 
 
Members were interested in receiving a Recreation summary report and will be 
presented with that at a future meeting. 

 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 



Centennial Celebration Time Capsule Ceremony
December 19, 2013



DRAFT    
 

 
1.  BACKGROUND 

 
TPARK was established by Ordinance 418-77, adopted November 28, 1977, and incorporated 
into the Tualatin Municipal Code as Chapter 11-2. TPARK also serves as the Tree Board for the 
purpose of the Tree City USA program pursuant to Resolution 2013-87, adopted July 27, 1987.  
 
Section 11-2-090 of the Tualatin Municipal Code calls for an annual report summarizing TPARK's 
activities in the preceding calendar year, outlining future activities of the committee, and identifying 
any other matters deemed appropriate by the committee for recommendation and advice to the 
Council. 
 
The members of TPARK in 2012 were Stephen Ricker, Bruce Andrus-Hughes, Kay Dix, Connie 
Ledbetter, Dana Paulino, Valerie Pratt (Vice Chair), and Dennis Wells (Chair).  
 
TPARK recognizes and supports the Community Services Department’s vision and missions. 

 
 Vision Statement 

We create community through people, facilities, programs, and the natural environment. 
 
 Missions 
 The following missions help achieve the vision. 
 

 Strengthen Community Image and Sense of Place 
Parks, library, recreation facilities, programs and community events are key factors in 
strengthening community image and creating a sense of place. 

 
 Support Economic Development 

Library, parks, recreation programs and facilities attract and retain businesses and 
residents, and increase property values. 

 
 Strengthen Safety and Security 

Parks and libraries provide safe environments for recreation. Facilities, programs and 
services help reduce criminal activity. 

 
 Promote Health and Wellness 

Participation at parks and libraries improves physical, psychological, and emotional 
health. 

 

2013 ANNUAL REPORT 
of the 

Tualatin Park Advisory Committee 
(TPARK) 



 
2013 Annual Report of the Tualatin Park Advisory Committee 
Page 2 of 9                                                              

 
 Foster Human Development and an Informed Citizenry 

Libraries and recreation services foster social, intellectual, lifelong learning, physical 
and emotional development through access to information, programs and materials that 
promote literacy. 

 
 Increase Cultural Unity 

Parks, libraries, and recreation increase cultural unity through experiences that promote 
cultural understanding and celebrate diversity. 

 
 Protect Natural and Cultural Resources 

Natural and cultural resources are protected through acquisition and management of 
open space, such as parks, greenways, natural areas; and learning and discovery take 
place through library collections and interpretive facilities and programs. 

 
 Provide Recreational Experiences 

A variety of benefits to individuals and society are achieved though participation in 
programmed and self-facilitated recreation and volunteerism. Recreation experiences 
are important as an end in themselves for personal enjoyment. 

 
 

2. ROLES OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
 The Tualatin Park Advisory Committee has the duty to   
 

A. Recommend and makes suggestions to the City Council regarding all matters relating to public 
parks, playground-related activities and programs. This shall include, but not be limited to  

a. the budget process,  
b. immediate and long-range planning, and  
c. citizen participation; and 

 
B. Formulate comprehensive and community-wide park and recreation systems and programs to 

serve the horticultural, environmental, historical, recreational, cultural and leisure needs of all 
City residents; and 
 

C. Consider the provisions of any comprehensive plan, project plan or agency plan of the City of 
Tualatin Development Commission, the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Tualatin, and 
other government agencies having plans or projects affecting the City of Tualatin; and 
 

D. As the City’s Tree Board TPARK makes recommendations to staff and Council on Urban 
Forestry related issues. 
 

 
3. ACTIONS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS IN SUPPORT OF ROLES IN 2013 
 

A. RECOMMEND AND MAKE SUGGESTIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL REGARDING ALL 
MATTERS RELATING TO PUBLIC PARKS, PLAYGROUND-RELATED ACTIVITIES AND 
PROGRAMS 

 
 



 
2013 Annual Report of the Tualatin Park Advisory Committee 
Page 3 of 9                                                              

 
TPARK made a number of recommendations to staff and Council in 2013. Most of the 
recommendations were informed by public testimony. Citizens and other interested parties 
shared their thoughts on a range of planning, policy and capital projects including  the 
Transportation System Plan, Ice Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan, Arbor Week, and the Nyberg 
Rivers development. 
 
1. Recommendations on the Transportation System Plan and Linking Tualatin 

2012 was “The Year of Transportation” in Tualatin and between the Transportation System 
Plan update and Linking Tualatin TPARK spent more time discussing transportation issues 
than any other issue that year. The culmination of their efforts came in January 2013 when 
the committee reviewed Plan Text Amendment (PTA)-12-02 which would amend the 
Tualatin Development Code to include the 2012 TSP. TPARK unanimously recommended 
to the Tualatin City Council that they adopt PTA-12-02 which was adopted on February 25, 
2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2.  Recommended Council Accept the Ice Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan 

The culmination of years of review and input on the development of the Ice Age Tonquin 
Trail Master Plan, TPARK recommended in January of 2013 that the Tualatin City Council 
1) adopt the IATTMP, 2) incorporate the IATTMP into the Parks and Recreation Master  
Plan and the Tualatin Development Code, and 3) build the Tualatin segments of the IATT 
as soon as funding becomes available. Council accepted the plan on February 25, 2013. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
2013 Annual Report of the Tualatin Park Advisory Committee 
Page 4 of 9                                                              

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

3. Recommended that Council approve the formation of an Arbor Week ad hoc 
Committee. 
On January 8, 2013 TPARK recommended that Council establish an ad hoc committee to 
plan the 2013 Arbor Week celebrations. The Arbor Week ad hoc Committee is formed to 
increase public awareness and education around the contribution that trees have in our 
lives and produce the Arbor Week proclamation, a requirement of the Tree City USA 
program. Council approved the formation of the Arbor Week ad hoc Committee on January 
28, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 
2013 Annual Report of the Tualatin Park Advisory Committee 
Page 5 of 9                                                              

4. Received the 2013 Tualatin Heritage Center Annual Report and recommended that 
Council accept the report. 

 
Per the 2005 Agreement for Operation of the Tualatin Heritage Center, the Tualatin 
Historical Society provides annual reports summarizing the hours of 
operation, activities, attendance, fee schedules, revenues and expenditures, 
accidents, participant evaluations and surveys, staffing changes, marketing efforts, 
building custodial and maintenance concerns, and other relevant issues to TPARK and the 
Tualatin City Council. 

 
TPARK received the report on February 12, 2013 and recommended that Council accept 
the Tualatin Heritage Center Report, which they did on on February 25, 2013.  
 

5. Recommendations on the Nyberg Rivers Development. 
The Tualatin Park Advisory Committee reviewed the proposed Nyberg Rivers Master Plan 
to provide the Council with TPARK’s comments regarding the extent to which the proposed 
Nyberg Rivers Master Plan achieves the goals of the Central Urban Renewal District Plan, 
Goal 6 Pedestrian and Bikeways and Goal 9 Parks, and how well it complies with the 
Tualatin Development Code, Chapter 11.650 Pedestrian, Bicycle, and Multi-Use Path 
Modal Plan and Chapter 72 Natural Resource Protection Overlay District. 
 
Comments and recommendations were made at TPARK’s June meeting and shared with 
Council along with other public and committee comments. 

 
 

B. FORMULATE COMPREHENSIVE AND COMMUNITY-WIDE PARK AND RECREATION 
SYSTEMS AND PROGRAMS TO SERVE THE HORTICULTURAL, ENVIRONMENTAL, 
HISTORICAL, RECREATIONAL, CULTURAL AND LEISURE NEEDS OF ALL CITY 
RESIDENTS 

 
In 2013 TPARK regularly provided input on parks and recreation programs, activities and 
special events, but they also participated in them. TPARK members volunteered at the West 
Coast Giant Pumpkin Regatta, Tualatin TRYathlon, Arbor Week Celebration, Centennial 
Celebration, and other recreation programs.  

 
1. Trail User Counting Project 
 TPARK members performed the 2013 trail user counts to determine the use of the Tualatin 

River Greenway. Data in the 2008-2012 Intertwine Trail Use Snapshot show that 490,000 
people used the Tualatin River Greenway per year during that time frame. This data is used 
to establish a national database of bicycle and pedestrian count information generated by 
these consistent methods and practices and allows analysis on the correlations bicycle and 
pedestrian activity and local characteristics.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
2013 Annual Report of the Tualatin Park Advisory Committee 
Page 6 of 9                                                              

 
 
 
2. Supported the City of Tualatin’s Community Development Block Grant application 

and the Connect V grant application. 
TPARK provided letters of support for the City’s applications for grants to install a fire 
sprinkler system at the Juanita Pohl Center and to develop a mile long section of the 
Tualatin River Greenway.  
 

3. Learned about the HEAL and Let’s Move Initiatives. 
Discussed how HEAL and Let’s Move initiatives can help further the Council goals and 
TPARK’s current and possible future roles. Discussion about ways to market the issue and 
how City missions, programming, and facilities support healthy, eating and active living, 
and reducing childhood obesity. 
 

4. Lafky Park Playground Replacement Project 
The playground equipment at Lafky Park was replaced this year. The community was 
invited to attend the Public Design Workshop on Saturday, April 6, 2013 at the park to 
share their thoughts on what elements the playground should have to meet their family’s 
needs and enhance the park. TPARK hosted a meeting where the outcomes of the Public 
Design Workshop were presented and TPARK made recommendations on which 
playground equipment should be purchased and installed. The new playground opened in 
late summer 2013. 
 



 
2013 Annual Report of the Tualatin Park Advisory Committee 
Page 7 of 9                                                              

 
 
 

C. CONSIDER THE PROVISIONS OF ANY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, PROJECT PLAN OR  
AGENCY PLAN OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION, THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN, AND OTHER GOVENRMENTAL 
AGENCIES HAVING PLANS OR PROJECTS AFFECTING THE CITY OF TUALATIN 

 
  1.  SW Corridor Plan 
 This planning process is a comprehensive planning effort to create livable and sustainable 

communities along the Barbur Boulevard/Highway 99W corridor between Portland, Tigard 
and Sherwood through integrated community investments in land use and transportation. 
Stephen Ricker represented TPARK at meetings regarding the SW Corridor regional 
planning project. TPARK reviewed and commented on the Southwest Corridor Transit 
Evaluation Results and Draft Recommendation. 

 
2. Ice Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan 

The future Ice Age Tonquin Trail will offer bicyclists and pedestrians safe, new connections 
between Wilsonville, Sherwood and Tualatin. Connie Ledbetter represented TPARK and 
the IATTMP Project Steering Committee and conveyed their discussions and decisions to 
TPARK for their deliberations. See recommendation in Section 3.A..2 of this report. 
 
  



 
2013 Annual Report of the Tualatin Park Advisory Committee 
Page 8 of 9                                                              

 
 

Other projects and plans TPARK reviewed and discussed in 2013 include: Basalt Creek and 
West Railroad Planning Area, Tualatin Tomorrow, Ice Age Discovery Trail, Chieftain/Dakota 
Greenway Outfalls & Trail Retrofit update, Oregon Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor 
Recreation Plan, and Tualatin’s Capital Improvement Plan. 

 
 

 D.  AS THE CITY’S TREE BOARD TPARK MAKES RECOMMENDATIONS TO STAFF AND  
COUNCIL ON URBAN FORESTRY RELATED ISSUES 

 
1. Recommended that Council form an Arbor Week ad hoc Committee and Proclaim 

April 7 – April 13, 2013 Arbor Week in the City of Tualatin 
TPARK recommended that Council form this committee to help plan the Arbor Week 
Celebration and develop the Arbor Week Proclamation. The committee was approved by 
Council on January 28, 2013 and the proclamation was read on March 25, 2013. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
2013 Annual Report of the Tualatin Park Advisory Committee 
Page 9 of 9                                                              

 
 

4.  ACTION PLAN FOR 2014 
 

A. Continue to fulfill prescribed duties 
 

B. Provide Recommendations and Public Engagement Opportunities for the Public during 
the Parks and Recreation Master Plan Update 

 
C. Support the Continuing Development of Parks and Recreation Facilities 

 
  
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Tualatin Park Advisory Committee respectfully recommends: 
 
1) That City move forward with an update to the Park and Recreation Master Plan as 

scheduled and budgeted. 
 

2) TPARK suggests Council determine and take appropriate actions to see that the 
Shared Pathway serving as the Tualatin River Greenway Trail between I-5 and 
Boones Ferry Road be constructed as quickly as possible to promote safe 
circulation across the site and to provide connectivity with east Tualatin. 


	2014-1-14_TPARK_Agenda
	2013-12-10_tparkmin
	Time Capsule Placed -December 19, 2013
	2013 TPARK Annual Report - DRAFT 3


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


